STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
IN THE SUPREME COURT

---

Certiorari to Spartanburg County  
J. Mark Hayes, II, Circuit Court Judge

---

Jeffrey E. Jeter -- Appellant,

-vs-

State of South Carolina -- Respondent,

Appellate Case No. 2017-000076

---

PETITION FOR WRIT OF CERTIORARI  
PURSUANT TO RULE 243, SCACR.

---

Jeffrey E. Jeter  
SCDC# 131471  
Perry Corr. Inst.  
430 Oaklawn Rd.  
Pelzer, SC. 29669

Appellant, pro-se

**RECEIVED**

FEB 22 2017

S.C. SUPREME COURT

## QUESTION PRESENTED

THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN DENYING APPELLANT'S RULE 60(B)(3) ,SCRCP MOTION WHERE APPELLANT PROVIDED SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE OF "FRAUD AND MISREPRESENTATION" TO THE COURT BY THE SOLICITOR WHEN THE SOLICITOR MISLED THE COURT BY STATING THAT APPELLANT WAS PLEADING GUILTY TO FORGERY OVER \$5,000 and THAT APPELLANT WAS CHARGED AS A SUBSEQUENT THIRD OFFENSE ; WHEN IN FACT APPELLANT WAS INDICTED FOR FORGERY UNDER \$5,000 AND WAS NOT CHARGED NOR INDICTED AS A THIRD OR SUBSEQUENT THIRD OFFENSE AND THEREFORE THE COURT LACKED SUBJECT-MATTER JURISDICTION AS THIS CHANGED THE NATURE OF THE OFFENSE AND ENHANCED THE POSSIBLE SENTENCES THAT COULD BE IMPOSED.

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Appellant is presently confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant to commitment orders of the Spartanburg County Clerk of Court. Appellant was initially indicted during the March 2009 term of the Spartanburg County Grand jury for five counts of forgery under \$5,000 (09-GS-42-1413; 1414; 14151 ; 1416 and 1802) two counts of receiving stolen goods (09-GS-42-1419 and 1420), and obtaining money by false pretenses (09-GS-42-1421). Appellant was subsequently indicted in October 2010 for [two counts of "petit larceny" -- 3rd or subsequent (10-GS-42-5616 and 5617)]. On October 28, 2010, Appellant pleaded guilty before the Honorable Roger Couch as indicted. Judge Couch sentenced Appellant to confinement for concurrent terms of ten years for one count of forgery (09-1802), obtaining money under false pretenses, petit larceny, and both receiving stolen goods. Judge Couch also sentence Appellant to **ten years** for the remaining forgery counts, to be served consecutively to the other sentences.

On February 22, 2016, Appellant filed Rule 60(B)(3), SCRCP, motion based on the soley on the five forgery under \$5,000 stated above as a result of the solicitor's "fraud and misrepresentation" to the Court regarding those offenses and the Court's lack of subject matter jurisdiction.

On September 1, 2016 Respondent's filed a Return (Appendix (C)) and on October 31, 2016 the lower court denied relief. (Appendix (D)). On November 23, 2016 Appellant filed a timely Rule 52(b) & 59(e), SCRCP motion(s) seeking the Court to alter/amend and/or reconsider judgment. On December 7, 2016 Respondent's filed their Return to Appellant's motion to alter/amend or reconsider judgment and on December 13, 2016 the lower Court denied the motion to

alter/amend and/or reconsider judgment. Appellant filed a timely Notice of Appeal with this Court. This Court subsequent by way of letter dated January 18 , 2017 advised Appellant he had thirty-days (30) within which to file his brief in accordance with SCACR Rul 243. That Explanation is as follows:

## ARGUMENT

### QUESTION PRESENTED

THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN DENYING APPELLANT'S RULE 60(B)(3) ,SCRPC MOTION WHERE APPELLANT PROVIDED SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE OF "FRAUD AND MISREPRESENTATION" TO THE COURT BY THE SOLICITOR WHEN THE SOLICITOR MISLEAD THE COURT BY STATING THAT APPELLANT WAS PLEADING GUILTY TO FORGERY OVER \$5,000 and THAT APPELLANT WAS CHARGED AS A SUBSEQUENT THIRD OFFENSE : WHEN IN FACT APPELLANT WAS INDICTED FOR FORGERY UNDER \$5,000 AND WAS NOT CHARGED NOR INDICTED AS A THIRD OR SUBSEQUENT THIRD OFFENSE AND THEREFORE THE COURT LACKED SUBJECT-MATTER JURISDICTION AS THIS CHANGED THE NATURE OF THE OFFENSE AND ENHANCED THE POSSIBLE SENTENCES THAT COULD BE IMPOSED.

### FACTS

Appellant was indicted on five (5) counts of Forgery under \$5,000. See Appendix (A). On October 28, 2010 Appellant entered a plea of guilty as indicted and Judge Couch sentenced Appellant to concurrent terms of [ten years] for [one] count of forgery (09-1802), obtaining money under a false pretense, petit larceny, and both counts of receiving stolen goods. Judge Couch also sentenced Appellant to 10 years for the remaining forgery counts, to be served consecutively to the other charges and the probation revocation, for an aggregate sentence of forty-years.

Appellant submits that he was never indicted for forgery over \$5,000 nor was he indicted as a third or subsequent offense. The "fraud and misrepresentation" transpired the the inappropriate misconduct of the solicitor as was recorded before the plea court

Solicitor Kendall: Your Honor, before the Court is Jeffrey Jeter on indictment 09-1802, 09-1414, 09-1413. Those four are for forgeries over \$5,000 all third or subsequents.

09-1419, receiving stolen goods under \$1,000.

09-1415, an additional forgery.

09-1420, receiving stolen goods \$1,000 to \$5,000.

obtaining property by false pretenses under indictment  
09-1421.

Forgery under \$5,000 on indictment 09-1416.

A petit larceny under indictment of 10-5616.

A petit larceny under indictment 10-5617.

Each of these, Your Honor, are third and subsequent of-  
fense.

App.16, 11.10-23.

One need only glean the procedural history of the lower Court's order at Appendix (D) and it's apparent that the **only** offenses that were indicted as [third or subsequent] was in fact the (2) two petty larcenies] listed above and Appendix (D). Appellant was never indicted for forgery **over** \$5,000 or as a third or subsequent third as "misrepresented" by the solicitor and therefore the plea court lacked subject matter jurisdiction to to accept a plea to forgery over \$5,000. The prejudice incurred is easily seen. Appellant agreed to plead guilty **as indicted**. Therefore the five forgery counts [as] indicted were for forgery under \$5,000. Appellant was only facing 5-years on each of the forgery's rather than the 10-years for each as handed down by the Court. i.e. forgery under \$5,000 is punishable by five (5) years, as where forgery over \$5,000 carries 10-years. The Court was without authority to sentence Appellant to 40-years aggregate for forgery over \$5,000.

During the plea colloquy the solicitor further advised the Court:

Mr. Jeter pleads to five counts of forgery with two counts of petit larceny to run concurrently with each other and with his probation violation for -- additionally that Mr. Jeter plead to one count of obtaining money under a false pretenses and two counts of receiving stolen goods with a recommendation of a consecutive ten years suspended to five years probation with restitution. The remaining three charges will be dismissed in this indident .

As is clearly noted the above was merely a recommendation by Solicitor. However, the solicitor's previous "misrepresentation" to the Court that Appellant was indicted on five counts of forgery over \$5,000 and that such offenses were third and subsequent offenses openly allowed the plea court to somehow "enhance" the five forgery counts under \$5,000 to forgery over \$5,000 in violation of Appellant's due process rights as Appellant was never indicted for forgery over \$5,000. See Appendix (A).

The 40-year aggregate sentence handed down by the court for five counts of forgery under \$5,000 exceeds the statutory maximum as forgery under \$5,000 carries a maximum penalty of (5) five-years. Therefore, the Court could have only sentenced Appellant to 20-year aggregate sentence.

Appellant submits the sentencing court was without statutory authority to enhance Appellant's five counts of forgery under \$5,000 to foergery over \$5,000. Thus the sentencing court lacked subject matter jurisdiction because Appellant was never indicted as a third and subsequent offense nor was he indicted for forgery over \$5,000.

The effect of the judgment of an unauthorized sentence is thus stated in 21 AM. JUr.2d. Criminal law, Section 535:

A judgment by a court in a criminal case must conform strictly to the statute, and any variation from it's provisions, either in character or the extent of punishment inflicted, renders the judgment "VOID". A statute which creates an offense and prescribes a special form of punishment excludes any different or additional punishment.

See State v. Moore, 255 S.E.2d 447 at 449 (1979). The judgement regarding the 40-year aggregate sentences handed down by the court for forgery over \$5,000 is [VOID] as the Appellant was never charged or indicted for forgery over \$5,000 by a grand jury and therefore the Court was without subject matter jurisdiction in that regard.

Subject matter jurisdiction may be brought at any time. Brown v. State, 343 S.C. 342, 540 S.E.2d, 846 (2001), overruled in part by Gentry v. State, 363 S.C. 96, 610 S.E.2d 494 (2005). However, "[c]ircuit courts obviously have subject matter jurisdiction to try criminal matters. Gentry, 610 S.E.2d at 499. Thus, the applicant must present evidence that his case is of some class over which the circuit court does not have authority to preside.

Appellant submits that a court in the instant matter lacked subject matter jurisdiction to convict Appellant for forgery over \$5,000 because there has been no indictments handed down by the grand jury for that offense. State v. Williams, 552 S.E. 54 (S.C. App.2003); also see Appendix (A).

Clearly the lower court erred in not granting relief on this claim.

In a motion seeking relief pursuant to Rule 60(B), SCRCP, the movant has the burden of presenting evidence (Appendix (A)), usually provided by affidavits, proving facts essential to entitle

him to relief. *Bowers v. Bowers*, 304 S.C. 65, 403 S.E.2d 127 (Ct. App.1991). Further relief under Rule 60(B), requires the existence of a meritorious defense. See *Mitchell Supply v. Gaffney*, 297 S.C. 160, 375 S.E.2d 321 (Ct.App.1988).


Rule 60(B)(3), SCRCP, provides that the Court may relieve a party from a final judgment based upon "fraud, misrepresentation, or other misconduct of an adverse party [.]"

Appellant is entitled to relief in the instant matter.

CONCLUSION

Petitioner respectfully requests this Court reverse the decision of the lower court, and remand for a new hearing with instructions consistent with the relief this Court deems just and appropriate in the instant matter.