STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
In The Supreme Court

---

**RECEIVED**

APR 28 2017

CERTIORARI TO SPARTANBURG COUNTY  
Court of Common Pleas

The Honorable J. Mark Hayes II, Circuit Court Judge

---

S.C. SUPREME COURT

Appellate Case No. 2017-000076

Jeffrey E. Jeter, ..... Petitioner,

v.

State of South Carolina, ..... Respondent.

**RETURN TO PETITION FOR  
WRIT OF CERTIORARI**

ALAN WILSON  
Attorney General

ALICIA A. OLIVE  
Assistant Attorney General  
SC Bar #102089

P.O. Box 11549  
Columbia, S.C. 29211  
(803) 734-3737

ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT

**

## **QUESTION PRESENTED**

Did the circuit court abuse its discretion in denying Petitioner's motion for relief from judgment pursuant to Rule 60(b)(3) where the motion was untimely and without merit?

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Petitioner is presently confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant to orders of commitment of the Spartanburg County Clerk of Court. Petitioner was indicted at the March 2009 term of the Spartanburg County Grand Jury for five counts of forgery less than \$5,000 (09-GS-42-1413, -1414, -1415, -1416, and -1802), two counts of receiving stolen goods (09-GS-42-1419, and -1420), and obtaining money by false pretenses (09-GS-42-1421). He was subsequently indicted in October 2010 for two counts of petit larceny – 3<sup>rd</sup> or subsequent (10-GS-42-5616, and -5617). He was represented by James A. Cheek, Esquire. On October 28, 2010, Petitioner pleaded guilty as indicted. The Honorable Roger L. Couch sentenced him to confinement for concurrent terms of ten years for one count of forgery (09-1802), obtaining money by false pretenses, petit larceny, and both counts of receiving stolen goods. Judge Couch also sentenced Petitioner to ten years for the four remaining forgery charges, to be served consecutively to the other sentences and Petitioner's probation revocation, for an aggregate sentence of forty years. Petitioner filed a *pro se* Motion for Resentencing. Following a hearing, Judge Couch denied the motion on December 17, 2010. A timely notice of appeal was filed, but the South Carolina Court of Appeals dismissed the appeal on December 2, 2010, for a failure to demonstrate any issues preserved for appellate review. The Remittitur was returned on December 21, 2010.

Petitioner then filed an Application for Post-Conviction Relief (PCR) on May 2, 2011. Respondent made its Return on May 2, 2012. In his Application, Petitioner alleged that he is being held in custody unlawfully for the following reasons:

1. Ineffective assistance of counsel, in that;
  - a. A conflict of interest existed because Counsel (James Cheek) is associated with the Spartanburg Community Memorial Committee, which was a victim in the case and Clay Allen

- insured Applicant that James Cheek would not have anything to do with his case,
- b. Applicant never received a copy of his discovery materials,
  - c. **Counsel failed to object to the excessive sentence given by the Court when it exceeded the maximum authorized by law,**
  - d. Counsel failed to file a Motion to withdraw guilty plea when the court failed to follow the State's recommendation,
  - e. Applicant signed a legally binding contract with the solicitor's office regarding a plea offer, which was not enforced.

An evidentiary hearing into the matter was convened on November 9, 2012, at the Spartanburg County Courthouse before the Honorable J. Mark Hayes, II. Petitioner was present at the hearing and represented by Jonathan C. Bonds, Esquire. Suzanne H. White, Esquire, of the South Carolina Attorney General's Office, represented Respondent. Following the hearing, Judge Hayes denied and dismissed Petitioner's PCR application by written order filed January 18, 2013.

Petitioner filed a timely notice of appeal. Robert M. Pachak, Esquire, of the Office of Appellate Defense, filed a Petition for Writ of Certiorari pursuant to Johnson v. State, 294 S.C. 310, 364 S.E.2d 201 (1988). The Supreme Court of South Carolina denied the petition by written order dated August 21, 2014. The Remittitur was returned to the Circuit Court on September 8, 2014.

Petitioner then filed a Motion for Relief from Judgment pursuant to Rule 60(b) on February 22, 2016, and June 14, 2016. Respondent submitted its Return on September 1, 2016, arguing the motion must be dismissed as untimely and without merit. Petitioner filed two documents, on October 11, 2016, and October 13, 2016, respectively, in opposition to the proposed order of dismissal. On October 31, 2016, the Honorable J. Mark Hayes, II, issued an order denying and dismissing the motion. Petitioner then filed a "Motion to Alter/Amend and

Reconsider Judgment Pursuant to: Rules 52(b); 59(e), [SCRCP]” on November 29, 2016. Respondent made its Return on December 7, 2016. On December 12, 2016, Judge Hayes issued an Order denying Petitioner’s Motion to alter, amend, or reconsider the order denying his Rule 60(b), SCRCP motion. Petitioner then filed a Notice of Appeal and Petition for Writ of Certiorari appealing the circuit court’s denial of his 60(b) motion.

## STANDARD OF REVIEW

Whether to grant or deny a motion under SCRCP 60(b) is within the sound discretion of the judge. Coleman v. Dunlap, 306 S.C. 491, 494, 413 S.E.2d 15, 17 (1992) (citing Tri-County Ice and Fuel Co. v. Palmetto Ice Co., 303 S.C. 237, 399 S.E.2d 779, 782 (1990)). The trial judge's ruling on such a motion will not be disturbed absent an abuse of discretion. Tri-County Ice & Fuel Co., 303 S.C. at 242, 399 S.E.2d at 782 (citing Mitchell Supply Co. v. Gaffney, 297 S.C. 160, 375 S.E.2d 321 (Ct. App. 1988)). "An abuse of discretion arises where the [decision] was controlled by an error of law or . . . is based on factual conclusions that are without evidentiary support." Id.

## ARGUMENT

### **I. This Court should deny review because the circuit court did not abuse its discretion in denying Petitioner's 60(b) Motion as untimely and without merit.**

Petitioner argues the circuit court erred in denying his Rule 60(b)(3), SCRCP, motion because he “provided sufficient evidence of ‘fraud and misrepresentation’ to the court by the solicitor when the solicitor misled the court[.]” This Court should deny review because this issue is not preserved and the circuit court did not abuse its discretion in denying the motion.

#### *A. Petitioner's argument is not preserved for review*

This issue was not raised in Petitioner's 60(b) motion, but rather, was raised for the first time in his 59(e), SCRCP, motion, and therefore is not preserved. See Arnold v. State, 309 S.C. 157, 172–73, 420 S.E.2d 834, 842 (1992) (“The purpose of Rule 59(e), SCRCP, to alter or amend the judgment is to request the trial judge to ‘reconsider matters properly encompassed in a decision on the merits.’”(quoting Budinich v. Becton Dickinson & Co., 486 U.S. 196, 200 (1988))). Accordingly, this Court should deny review.

#### *B. The circuit court properly denied the motion as untimely*

Petitioner's motion was properly denied due to his failure to timely file his motion. South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure Rule 60(b)(5) states: “The motion shall be made within a reasonable time, and for reasons (1), (2), and (3) *not more than one year* after the judgment, order, or proceeding was entered or taken.” Though Petitioner's 60(b) motion was unclear as to which specific subsection he was seeking relief under, Petitioner specifically asserts in his Petition for Writ of Certiorari that the court “erred in denying [his] Rule 60(B)(3), SCRCP, motion.” (Petr. PWC p. ii). Rule 60(b) contains an explicit time limit for filing a motion pursuant to subsection (b)(3): *one year* after judgment. Rule 60(b)(3), SCRCP. Pursuant to the time limits

prescribed in Rule 60(b), the circuit court found that Petitioner's motion, which was filed February 22, 2016, was untimely because it challenged the PCR judge's order of dismissal which was issued on January 18, 2013, and served on Petitioner January 22, 2013—approximately three years earlier. Therefore, the circuit court did not abuse its discretion in dismissing the motion as untimely. Accordingly, this Court should deny review.

*C. The circuit court properly denied the motion as meritless*

Rule 60(b)(3), SCRCF, provides that a Court may relieve a party from a final judgment based upon "fraud, misrepresentation, or other misconduct of an adverse party[.]" Rule 60(b)(5), SCRCF, provides that the Court may relieve a party from a final judgment where "the judgment has been satisfied, released, or discharged, or a prior judgment upon which it is based has been reversed or otherwise vacated, or it is no longer equitable that the judgment should have prospective application." In a motion seeking relief pursuant to Rule 60(b), SCRCF, the movant has the burden of presenting evidence, usually provided by affidavits, proving the facts essential to entitle him to relief. Bowers v. Bowers, 304 S.C. 65, 403 S.E.2d 127 (Ct. App. 1991). Also, relief under Rule 60(b), SCRCF, requires the existence of a meritorious defense. See Mitchell Supply Co. v. Gaffney, 297 S.C. 160, 375 S.E.2d 321 (Ct. App. 1988). Further, Rule 60(b), SCRCF, does not provide a mechanism to set aside a *criminal* conviction because it is a rule of *civil* procedure. Therefore, Rule 60(b) is not the proper vehicle to challenge the validity of Petitioner's conviction.

In his 60(b) motion, Petitioner alleged the following: (1) his plea counsel prevented him from fully and fairly presenting his case; (2) an offer was made to him on October 8, 2009, that his plea counsel did not inform him of; (3) plea counsel had a conflict of interest and that he failed to argue or advise him that the charges constituted a spree, and (4) his sentence was unconstitutionally enhanced. With respect to the enhancement, Petitioner specifically argued his

prior forgery conviction was more than ten years old, and he was never informed that the offenses were charged as third or subsequent offense, or that he could receive consecutive sentences on the charges. He also argued he received no benefit from pleading guilty and that he could have received less time if he had gone to trial.

The circuit court properly found that Petitioner's claims set forth no specific allegations sufficient to entitle him to relief. He set forth no allegations of any mistake, inadvertence, surprise, or excusable neglect, no allegations of any "newly discovered" evidence, no specific allegations of fraud, misrepresentation, or other misconduct, no allegation that the order was void, and lastly, no allegation that supported relief under subsection (b)(5), SCRCP.

The circuit court also found that Petitioner cannot use Rule 60(b) to re-litigate issues that have already been adjudicated in prior civil actions. All allegations Petitioner raised in his 60(b) motion either have been or could have been addressed in his prior PCR action challenging his guilty plea. All arguments Petitioner raised in his 60(b) motion, with the exception that the charges constituted a spree, had already been raised to and ruled upon by the PCR judge in Petitioner's previous PCR action. See Foran v. USAA Casualty Ins. Co., 311 S.C. 189, 427 S.E.2d 918 (Ct. App. 1993) (holding a final judgment on the merits in a prior action bars subsequent consideration of those issues in a new action). Therefore, the circuit court did not abuse its discretion in finding that Petitioner's allegations were without merit and procedurally barred pursuant to the doctrine of *res judicata*. See id. (holding *res judicata* also bars any issues that could have been raised in the former action).

Accordingly, the circuit court did not abuse its discretion in finding that Petitioner failed to present any evidence proving the facts essential to entitle him to relief under Rule 60(b). See Bowers v. Bowers, 304 S.C. 65, 403 S.E.2d 127 (Ct. App. 1991).

**CONCLUSION**

For the foregoing reasons, this Court should deny the Petitioner's Petition for Writ of Certiorari.